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April 24, 2009 (Revised July 30, 2009)
Project No. 82540/GEO

Mr. Genaro Morales
Watry Design, Inc.
1700 Seaport Boulevard, Suite 210
Redwood City, California 94063
GMorales@watrydesign.com

SUBJECT: Addendum One to the Geotechnical Investigation for the Vallejo
Station Intermodal Facility at Georgia and Santa Clara Streets in
Vallejo, California

Dear Mr. Morales:

Kleinfelder previously performed a geotechnical investigation for the Vallejo
Station Intermodal Facility in Vallejo, California. The results were presented in
our report titled “Geotechnical Investigation, Vallejo Station Intermodal Facility,
Santa Clara and Georgia Streets, Vallejo, California” dated June 24, 2008
(Project Number 82540). In that report, we provided recommendations for a mat
foundation system. The mat system was to address groundwater impacts on the
basement portion of the structure, and the soft soils encountered in the western
portion of the site. Following the issuance of the report, other foundation
systems have been considered. The letter provides recommendations that
address a different foundation system than was discussed in our June 24, 2008
report. These recommendations have been previously transmitted to you in
various e-mails.

The new foundation system being considered is shallow footings supported
either on the native dense material in the eastern portion of the site, or on
rammed aggregate piers in the western portion. The zones of the eastern and
western portions of the site are shown in our original report. After the issuance of
our June 24, 2008 report, the design finish grade of the floor slab for the lower
basement has been raised to a maximum elevation of +4.501, with portion of the
slab sloping to +2.50 at the interior drains. The top of foundations vary from +3.5
to being completely submerged below the +1.0 water table. The footing
elevations need to be deepened due to the drains. The foundations will be high

1 Based on Project Datum as per Watry Design
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enough that there is no uplift due to the water. The floor slab will be supported
on the native soils at the site.

The planned change in the foundation system is acceptable provided the
recommendations presented in our June 24, 2008 and in this addendum letter
are included in the design. Presented below is a list of the additional design
parameters for the new foundation system.

1. The footings should be design for an allowable bearing capacity of
6,000 pounds per square foot for dead plus live load founded in siltstone.
This value can be increased by one-third for wind and/or seismic. The
footings should be embedded a minimum of 24 inches. Within the
western portion of the site, as delineated in our June 24, 2008 report, the
soils that are to be exposed directly at foundation level were found to be
soft and compressible. These soils were found to extend to depths on the
order of about 30 feet. To provide an improved foundation support for the
footings, the footings are to be supported with rammed aggregate piers
that extend through the softer soils that will directly underlying the lower
basement. It is our understanding that where high foundation loads is
located, that the rammed aggregate piers will be treated with cement to
increase the subgrade modulus. In the eastern portion of the site where
dense native soils are located, the footings can be supported directly on
the native soils provided that the soils encountered in the footing
excavation are acceptable. If unsuitable soils are exposed, they should
be overexcavated and the area of excavation backfill with either
compacted engineered fill or 2-sack cement lean concrete, and that loose
soils are removed from the bottom of the excavations. As indicated in the
June 24, 2008 report, there is a transition zone between the western and
eastern soil configuration. In this zone, the rammed aggregate piers
should be used. Shorter depths of the piers should be anticipated as the
locations of the piers move west to east.

2. Slabs-on-grade over siltstone should be supported over a minimum of 6
inches of Class 2 aggregate baserock. The baserock should be
compacted to a minimum of 90 percent compaction at near optimum
moisture content. If not supported directly on siltstone, the baserock
should be underlain by engineered fill or properly prepared native soils
compacted to a minimum of 90 percent at a minimum of 2 percent over
the optimum moisture content.

3. It is our understanding that some of the footings will be continuous strip
footings that extend from the western soft soils to the denser east soils.
A maximum modulus of subgrade reaction of 350 pounds per cubic inch
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(pci) is to be used in the eastern zone, and a maximum of 175 pci in the
western portion. In the transition zone between the two subgrade
conditions, a linear change can be used.

4. A ramp will be constructed to provide access to the lower basement. If
the ramp is to be located with the western or transition zones of the site
as shown in our June 24, 2008 report, the underlying soils may settled
significantly below the ramp if the ramp is constructed with backfill.
Therefore, if the ramp slab is to be supported on backfill, either a waiting
period of 3 months is required for the native soft soils to settle under the
weight of the backfill before constructing the ramp slab or the ramp slab
should be designed as a structural slab supported on the walls along the
side of the ramp with the area beneath the ramp slab unfilled.

5. The floor slab for the basement will be constructed at or slightly above
groundwater level. As a result, moisture may infiltrate through the slab or
the bottom portion of the perimeter walls. It is our understanding that it is
not desired to waterproof the basement slab or retaining walls. As such,
areas of moisture may occur in the slab and perimeter walls. The use of
the “mud” slab as discussed in Item 2 above will help but not eliminate
transmission of the moisture. It is our understanding that relief values are
being considered in the lower portion of the basement slab to reduce
hydrostatic pressure on the slab.

6. As requested, additional pavement sections for an expanded list of Traffic
Indices are provided below.

Asphalt Concrete Pavement Design

R-Value = 8
Traffic Index AC AB
6.0 3.0 13.0
7.0 4.0 14.5
8.0 4.5 17.5
9.0 5.5 19.5
Note: Thicknesses are shown in inches

AC = Type B Asphalt Concrete
AB = Class 2 Aggregate Base (Minimum R-Value = 78)

7. Permanent basement retaining walls placed against temporary shoring
that is left in place may be design using an equivalent fluid weight of 35
pounds per cubic foot (pcf).
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This letter was prepared in general accordance with the accepted standard of
practice that exists in Northern California at the time the evaluation was
performed. Our firm has prepared this letter for the Client’s exclusive use for this
particular project and in accordance with generally accepted engineering
practices within the area at the time of our investigation. No other
representations, expressed or implied, and no warranty or guarantee is included
or intended.

It should be noted that the conclusions and recommendations presented in this
report are based on limited subsurface exploration, and, as a result, variations
between anticipated and actual soil conditions may be found in localized areas
during construction. It is recommended that Kleinfelder be retained during
construction to observe earthwork and installation of foundations to make any
changes to our recommendations that may be necessary due to varying
subsurface conditions. We should review the project plans and specifications
prior to construction bidding, to confirm that they are in compliance with the
recommendations presented in this report.

We appreciate the opportunity of providing our services to you on this project and
trust this addendum letter meets your needs at this time. If you have any
questions concerning the information presented, please contact Catherine Ellis at
(408) 586-7611.

Sincerely,

KLEINFELDER WEST, INC.

Catherine Ellis, P.E., G.E. #2650
South Bay Area Manager

Cc: Jessica McInerney – Watry Design (electronic)
(JAMcInerney@watrydesign.com)

MFM/CHE/ct


